
Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

  MINUTES 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 15, 2022 - 7:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

• ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
The Township manager shared the meeting was being video recorded for future broadcast. 
 
The Township Solicitor shared an executive session on March 13th to discuss real estate 
matters. No decisions were made. 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

OFFICIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Consent agenda 
 
Chair DeLello pointed out that Supervisor Quigley was absent from the last meeting and would 
abstain from the vote on the minutes.  
 
Vice Chair Betz motioned to approve the consent agenda including the monthly Treasurer’s 
report, bill payment for the month totaling $568,134.62, and approval of the March 15th 
Business meeting minutes. Supervisor DeLello seconded the motion. The consent agenda was 
passed unanimously. 

 
2. Resolution 2023-08: A resolution to grant final approval of the Zacharczuk subdivision (aka 

Bellflower) 
 
Township solicitor Bob Brant provided an overview of the project, its size, and number of 
units. Mr. Brant shared the project had passed through the Planning Commission and has been 
reviewed by the Township Engineer. He noted a traffic impact fee of $71,586.00 was also 
required of the project, along with a $80,000 fee in lieu of planting trees. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the fee in lieu of the trees, and the purchase of EDUs from 
Upper Gwynedd Township. The Township Engineer, Mr. Nolan, noted the fee for the trees was 
calculated because the lot – which is largely wooded – could not fit the number of replacement 
trees they were required to plant on-site. 
 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Mr. Chuck Splendor presented on behalf of the applicant. He endorsed Mr. Brant’s summary of 
the project as accurate and called attention to the Final Plans presented to the Planning 
Commission the past February. He shared the review letters from the Township’s engineers are 
clean and that they are now seeking Final Plan approval. 
 
Chair DeLello asked Mr. Splendor some clarifying questions: 
 
Supervisors DeLello asked about the decision to pursue a fee in lieu of the trees. Mr. Nolan 
replied the waivers related to slopes prevented larger numbers of trees from being removed, 
however, the number of trees removed still necessitated more replacement trees than could be 
planted on site. 
 
Supervisor DeLello asked if the applicant agreed with and accepted all conditions outlined to 
date. Mr. Splendor replied in the affirmative. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the connection for the sewer pipe. Mr. Splendor replied it 
would be connected near the Reserve. Mr. Nolan stated an 8” line would be used. Mr. Splendor 
utilized a map to call attention to specific locations. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked if the woods around the development would be pruned or left as-is. 
Mr. Splendor stated the woods would be left alone. 
 
Supervisor DeLello asked about storm water management on the site. Mr. Nolan replied the 
stormwater management ordinance dictates MS4 requirements, and this project complies with 
that ordinance and NPDES requirements. He added that the project engineer, Susan Rice, was 
well versed in the subject. Supervisor DeLello asked about the maintenance of the stormwater 
basins. Mr. Nolan replied there was a stormwater management agreement in place. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the aesthetics of the homes. Mr. Splendor stated that he could not 
speak to the specific style, but the size and sale price of the homes would be similar to those on 
the Toll Project at Center Square. 
 
Supervisor Betz asked about the size of the lots. Mr. Splendor replied about a half-acre. Mr. 
Splendor shared that the project was designed assuming the maximum amount of impervious 
surface allowed by ordinance would be used, when calculating their MS4 figures. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the status of a Homeowners Association. Mr. Splendor confirmed 
there would be an HOA. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-08, granting Final Plan Approval 
to Bellflower. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. There was no public comment. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Resolution 2023-09: A resolution to accept Right-of-Way (Stump Hall Road) 
 
Mr. Brant provided an overview of the Resolution, which would accept land from a three-lot 
sub-division from 1995. A portion of lots two and three were offered to, but not accepted by, 
the Township until now. Those portions of the lots are necessary for the Rt. 363 widening 
projects. 
 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-09, accepting Right of Way along 
the Valley Forge Corridor. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. James Beam commented about the properties just discussed. Jim shared they had belonged 
to longtime Township Supervisor Jack Graham. 
 
Chair DeLello thanked Jim for his comment. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Motion: A motion to certify qualified volunteers for the Act 172 Earned Income Tax Credit for 
2022 
 
Township Manager Sean Halbom summarized the motion, which affords municipalities the 
ability to offer a property tax discount to volunteer emergency responders. 
 
Chair DeLello summarized the history of the benefit, which was passed first several years ago 
to help thank and reward those volunteers for their efforts. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve authorization to certify qualified volunteers for the 
Act 172 earned income tax credit for 2022. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
There was no public comment. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
5. Motion 

• A motion to authorize execution by the Township of the Valley Forge Road Corridor 
Deeds of Dedication and Temporary Construction Easements signed by Timothy Gates 
and Lisa Nicholson 

 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-09, to authorize execution by the 
Township of the Valley Forge Road Corridor Deeds of Dedication and Temporary 
Construction Easements signed by Timothy Gates and Lisa Nicholson, per the criteria 
outlined by Township Solicitor, Bob Brant. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the status of the project at Valley Forge Road and Germantown Pike. 
The Township Engineer, Joe Nolan, replied that the project has not progressed in land development 
since their preliminary plans were received and responded to. Mr. Nolan shared the owner of the 
property is currently in the midst of a voluntary PA DEP (Act 2) remediation. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the process for environmental inspections of the property and shared that 
residents had reached out to him with concern. Mr. Nolan stated an environmental study had been 
performed, and is regulated by PA DEP, not the Township. Mr. Nolan reiterated that the project is still 
required to comply with the land development process, once they reply to their preliminary plan 
reviews,  
 
Mr. Betz shared some brief history of the project site, which is a licensed junkyard. Mr. Betz asked if 
there is an environmental study of the property, when or how the Township can obtain a copy. He 
asked if there were any manifests of material that left the property. Mr. Nolan confirmed that manifests 
are required, but monitored by PA DEP. 
 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Mr. Betz shared the Worcester Fire Department recently sold one of their trucks and is in the process 
of purchasing a replacement truck and voiced his support for the agency. 
 
Chair DeLello asked about the project site at Germantown and Valley Forge Road. Chair DeLello 
asked about the environmental report and how to get a copy. Mr. Nolan replied a copy had been 
requested in the preliminary review letter. Mr. Quigley asked about the layout and traffic design on the 
project. Mr. Nolan replied the Traffic Engineer (McMahon) reviews those issues to ensure compliance 
with our ordinance. The Board discussed the progress of the project to-date through the Zoning 
Hearing Board and Planning Commission. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Winny Hayes thanked Mr. Nolan for his service to the Township over his career. Mrs. Hayes asked if 
a list of contaminates was available for the property at Germantown Pike and Valley Forge Road (The 
Dubner Property). Supervisor DeLello replied that the Township is working on gathering documents at 
this time. Mr. Brant and Mr. Halbom shared the Township had received a letter from PA DEP recently 
that identifies some contaminants and encouraged her to file a Right to Know request for the 
document. 
 
Mrs. Hayes asked about the setbacks from the BET project buildings and the road. Mr. Nolan replied 
he didn’t know offhand, but the plans would detail that information. Ms. Hayes reiterated her concerns 
about the Comprehensive Plan Update from the previous meeting. She requested the Task Force be 
allowed to revisit the document. 
 
Michelle Greenawalt thanked Joe Nolan for his service and commended him for his knowledge and 
thoroughness. She asked for added transparency with the BET projects. She shared that, in her role as 
a member of the Planning Commission, the commission would benefit from additional time and data 
for such projects. 
 
Chair DeLello interjected to offer that Mrs. Greenawalt may have been conflating the curative 
amendment and the preliminary plans for the BET site. Mr. Betz asked about the vote for the curative 
amendment. She shared the vote passed 3-2, with her and Bob voting no based on a lack of 
information on which to base a decision. Mr. Brant asked to clarify which item Mrs. Greenawalt was 
commenting on, she replied the curative amendment. Mr. Brant stated that the hearing was not before 
the Zoning Hearing Board. 
 
Supervisor Quigley recalled the professional planner hired by the Township to assess the curative 
amendment, did meet with the Planning Commission at some point. He shared his recollection of the 
process to-date. Supervisor Betz voiced appreciation for Mrs. Greenawalt’s comments. 
 
Joe Nolan announced that he’ll be retiring on June 30th of this year. He stated he has shared the 
information with the Township Manager to provide for an easy turnover. He thanked the Board for the 
opportunity to serve Worcester since 1987. 
 
Chair DeLello thanked Mr. Nolan for his time and service. He pointed out that Joe has been 
reappointed Township Engineer on an annual basis for thirty-five years, which is extremely rare, and a 
testament to Joe’s integrity and hard work.  
 
Bert Haines also started his comments by thanking Mr. Nolan for his long career. Mr. Haines thanked 
the Board for their diligence in watching the BET project progress. He shared that Mr. Betz 
recollection was correct, and that the site has served a variety of purposes of the years, including a 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

junk yard and car dealership. He shared that tired were burned regularly on the site in past, when such 
practices were commonplace. He encouraged the Board to keep abreast of the project’s development.  
 
Bert endorsed Mrs. Hayes’ earlier comments and requested the Board allow the task force to review 
the document.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 PM. 
 

 































ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

Z-2020-221 2591 SIBEL CIR 3/29/2023 $275.00Zoning Permit Completed
Description: Grading for in ground pool - updated 3/29/23 - installation of overflow outlet pipe.

B-2021-262 2620 Skippack Pike 3/21/2023 $9,117.75Building Permit Completed
Description: new SFA - 22, 24, 26 & 28 Tamarack (Lots 91, 92, 93 & 94)

B-2022-45 2620 Skippack Pike 3/15/2023 $9,150.42Building Permit In Progress
Description: new SFA - Tamarack Circle - 8 (Lot 84), 10 (Lot 85), 12 (Lot 86) & 14 (Lot 87)

B-2022-95 2620 Skippack Pike 3/2/2023 $9,187.42Building Permit Completed
Description: New Townhomes

B-2022-118 2620 Skippack Pike 3/10/2023 $3,501.87Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction NSFD

B-2022-200 2620 Skippack Pike 3/21/2023 $3,399.75Building Permit In Progress
Description: Construction of NSFD

B-2022-270 2620 Skippack Pike 3/27/2023 $3,501.87Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction of NSFD

B-2022-408 2504 CRESTLINE DR 3/8/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: construction of a 400 sf. addition to existing deck

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 1

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=29949&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=31532&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=32877&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33132&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33254&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33739&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=34089&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=34806&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

Z-2023-10 2284 LOCUST DR 3/6/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit Application
Description: fence - solid vinyl and picket style

G-2023-4 3280 WATER STREET RD 3/8/2023 $365.00Grading Permit In Progress
Description: 21 x 38 in ground swimming pool with walkway

B-2023-44 2223 LOCUST DR 3/15/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: adding one foot to side of deck, replacing deck flooring and railing

B-2023-53 2631 HAWTHORN DR 3/22/2023 $129.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: installation of in-ground concrete swimming pool

B-2023-54 2586 HAWTHORN DR 3/22/2023 $129.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: installation of inground concrete pool

B-2023-57 2620 Skippack Pike 3/1/2023 $3,422.14Building Permit In Progress
Description: New SFD

B-2023-58 115 MUSTANG WAY 3/1/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: replace gas furnace

B-2023-59 2670 SHADY LN 3/1/2023 $287.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: addition to rear of house for master bath

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 2

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35367&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35385&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35394&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35428&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35435&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35463&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35473&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35474&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2023-60 2620 Skippack Pike 3/6/2023 $4,690.87Building Permit New
Description: New SFD 

B-2023-61 2583 BRANDON CT 3/6/2023 $32.50Building Permit Completed
Description: Tesla car charger

Z-2023-19 2297 WEIGNER RD 3/14/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Aluminum fence in rear yard for pool (replacement of existing fence)

B-2023-63 2602 RESOLUTION RD 3/9/2023 $157.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: install inground gunite swimming pool - ZHB Approval 23-01

Z-2023-20 2602 RESOLUTION RD 3/7/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Aluminum fence in rear yard for pool 

G-2023-12 2602 RESOLUTION RD 3/7/2023 $365.00Grading Permit In Progress
Description: Grading for in ground pool 

B-2023-64 2620 Skippack Pike 3/6/2023 $3,422.14Building Permit Application
Description: New SFD

Z-2023-21 2644 HAWTHORN DR 3/6/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Driveway Extension

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 3

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35477&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35489&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35491&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35492&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35494&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35495&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35497&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35498&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status
Description:

B-2023-65 2519 LONG MEADOW RD 3/9/2023 $104.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: portico above front door

B-2023-66 1023 WINDY HILL RD 3/8/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace existing deck and roof. 

B-2023-67 60 BRISTOL CT 3/9/2023 $402.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Renovate basement - dry wall, flooring, ceiling, & install lighting / electrical outlets

B-2023-68 3232 STUMP HALL RD 3/9/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace heat pump coil 

B-2023-69 3205 SKIPPACK PIKE 3/15/2023 $104.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Renovation of #250 Robin Ridge 

B-2023-70 1307 QUARRY HALL RD 3/9/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replacing existing deck

B-2023-71 2620 Skippack Pike 3/9/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Deck

B-2023-72 1758 GREEN BRIAR DR 3/22/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 4

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35501&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35502&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35503&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35504&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35505&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=35506&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36503&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36513&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status
Description: tie existing main panel into new main panel 

Z-2023-22 3320 WATER STREET RD 3/10/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Fence in rear yard for pool 

B-2023-74 2659 BEAN RD 3/15/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: 10 x 18 deck on existing barn

Z-2023-23 2009 BETHEL RD 3/10/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit Application
Description: 11 x 18 ft shed 

B-2023-75 2122 BERKS RD 3/15/2023 $62.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Unregulated heating tank removal and closure. 

Z-2023-24 2128 SCHULTZ RD 3/14/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Fence in rear side yard - 6 ft sides

Z-2023-25 2528 CRESTLINE DR 3/15/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: New fence in rear yard

B-2023-76 1405 OAK CIR 3/15/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace oil furnace. 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 5

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36515&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36522&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36523&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36536&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36537&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36538&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36539&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2023-77 3263 WATER STREET RD 3/15/2023 $74.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Installation of LP Fired Generac 22kW Gen. on a pre cast concrete pad. 

B-2023-78 3232 STUMP HALL RD 3/15/2023 $124.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Installation of 32 roof mounted 405w solar panels - 12.96kw system

B-2023-79 1891 LANDIS RD 3/15/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace gas furnace. 

Z-2023-26 1854 WHITEHALL RD 3/16/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit Application
Description: New fence - split rail 

B-2023-80 2965 POTSHOP RD 3/22/2023 $74.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Install a 26kw generator

B-2023-82 2567 COLD SPRING RD 3/22/2023 $102.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Installation of one NG 48kw Kohler Generator and one 400 Amp Automatic Transfer Switch 

B-2023-84 2589 HILLCREST DR 3/22/2023 $104.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Remove existing deck and install new paver patio 

B-2023-85 2568 CRESTLINE DR 3/22/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Demo existing deck and build new deck, same footprint. 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 6

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36540&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36541&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36542&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36551&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36555&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36557&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36564&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36565&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

Z-2023-27 2589 HILLCREST DR 3/27/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Paver patio. 

G-2023-14 2589 HILLCREST DR 3/23/2023 $365.00Grading Permit Application
Description: Grading around the newly installed patio using screened top soil and grade by hand and seed. 

B-2023-87 90 WHEATSHEAF LN 3/22/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace Gas Furnace and AC Coil Unit. 

B-2023-88 3209 HOGARTH LN 3/22/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace AC and Air Handler. 

Z-2023-28 3011 HEEBNER RD 3/23/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Shed/barn being built on the side yard. 

Z-2023-29 2280 LOCUST DR 3/28/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Shed/barn in rear yard. 

Z-2023-30 2620 Skippack Pike 3/23/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: front walkway and rear patio

Z-2023-31 3010 HEEBNER RD 3/28/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Shed less than 30" 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 7

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36569&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36572&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36574&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36575&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36586&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36590&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36592&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36599&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

Z-2023-32 48 E ADAIR DR 3/28/2023 $28.00Zoning Permit In Progress
Description: Fence in rear yard, split rail to fence in animals. 

B-2023-93 1412 REINER RD 3/29/2023 $424.40Building Permit In Progress
Description: removal of existing 590 sf deck and installation of 1152 sf deck with partial roof, electric and gas connection

Total $54,835.63

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 57
03/01/2023 to 03/31/2023

Run On: 4/3/2023 9:37:47 AM 8

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36603&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36609&printReport=print












Public Works Department Report 

                                                                              March 2023 

 

1) Road Maintenance 
A. Cleared inlets and drains throughout the Township 
B. Filled potholes throughout the Township 
C. Reestablishing edge of roadway swales 
D. Pruning vegetation to increase visibility of roadway signage and intersections  

 
2) Storm Maintenance 

A. No storm events in the month of March 
 

3) Parks 
A. Twice weekly cleaning of restrooms, emptying trash receptacles, and stocking dog 

bags 
B. Repairing washouts and general trail maintenance 
C. Removal of dead trees on Township properties/parks  
D. Fence Project completed 
E. Heebner Park baseball infield restoration underway 
F. Mt Kirk restrooms now open to the public 
G. Roof replacement on the small Heebner pavilion 
H. Mulching completed on all Township properties 
I. Spring turf application completed 
J. Cleaned and pruned properties in prep for mowing season 
K. Rolled all athletic fields 
L. Pulled stumps and repaired disturbed areas after tree removals 

 
4) Vehicle Maintenance 

A. Performed weekly maintenance of all Township vehicles 
B. Removed and stored all winter maintenance attachments 
C. 64-43 Door repair 
D. 64-42 Front end/alignment repairs 

 
5) Miscellaneous 

A. Setting up and cleaning of Community Hall for rentals and Township events 
B. Nike Compost facility open to residents twice weekly 

 

 



Worcester, PA
This report was generated on 4/2/2023 9:35:09 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Incidents by Shift for Date Range

SHIFT # INCIDENTS
Fire 18

Fire Police 8

TOTAL: 26

Start Date: 03/01/2023 | End Date: 03/31/2023

Doc Id: 27
emergencyreporting.com

Incidents with multiple EXPOSURES, with distinct stations, may create a slight difference between the report 
total and total number of actual incidents for the DATE RANGE provided.  The totals reflect the # INCIDENTS 
each STATION was assigned.  Only REVIEWED incidents included.

Page # 1 of 1

Fire Call Avg. Attendance: 18.5

Fire Police Call Avg. Attendance: 7.4

Drill Average Attendance: 37 

Daytime Calls Twp. Employees Assisted: 8

Call Man Hours: 278

Drill Man Hours: 397

Total Time on Scenes: 22:05:33

Special Duty/Events: 1



Worcester, PA
This report was generated on 4/2/2023 9:55:50 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Count of Incidents by Incident Type per Zone

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE

463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup 1 3.85%

Zone: 53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE Total Incident: 1 3.85%

61 - EAST NORRITON

111 - Building fire 1 3.85%

Zone: 61 - EAST NORRITON Total Incident: 1 3.85%

83 - WORCESTER

141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire 1 3.85%

143 - Grass fire 1 3.85%

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 5 19.23%

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 5 19.23%

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 2 7.69%

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 3.85%

445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1 3.85%

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 3 11.54%

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1 3.85%

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 3 11.54%

Zone: 83 - WORCESTER Total Incident: 23 88.46%

86 - SKIPPACK

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 1 3.85%

Zone: 86 - SKIPPACK Total Incident: 1 3.85%

TOTAL INCIDENTS FOR All ZONES: 26 100%

Incident Status: Reviewed | Start Date: 03/01/2023 | End Date: 03/31/2023

Doc Id: 1390
emergencyreporting.com

Report shows count of incidents for Status selected.

Page # 1 of 1



Resolution 2023-10 
 

 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION 2023-10 

 
A RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A MASTER AGREEMENT FOR 

CASTING ADJUSTMENTS WITH THE 
PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION   

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the authority of the Board of Supervisors of 
Worcester Township, Montgomery County, and it is hereby resolved 
by authority of the same, that the Township Manager of Worcester 
Township is authorized and directed to sign the attached Master 
Agreement, Project Initiation Form and Change Order for the 
duration of the Master Agreement on behalf of the Board, and 
further that the Township Secretary be authorized and directed to 
attest the same.  
 
RESOLVED THIS 19TH DAY OF APRIL, 2023. 

 
FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ____________________________ 
Sean Halbom, Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Resolution 2023-11 
Page 1 of 2 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER  
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA  

  
RESOLUTION 2023-11   

  
A RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE OFFICIAL TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS AND 

AGREEMENTS REGARDING THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MULTIMODAL 

TRANSPORTATION FUND GRANT PROGRAM 
  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township  previously requested a 
Multimodal Transportation Fund Grant in the amount of $700,000 from the Commonwealth 
Financing Authority to be used for Preliminary Engineering Design services for the Valley Forge 
Road (SR 0363) Corridor Improvement Project between Stump Hall Road and Woodlyn Avenue 
in Worcester Township, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania (the “Grant”); and  
 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to revise the designated official authorized to execute all 
documents and agreements between the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township and the 
Commonwealth Financing Authority relative to the Grant.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Applicant does hereby designate Sean 
Halbom, Township Manager, as the official to execute all documents and agreements between the 
Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township and the Commonwealth Financing Authority relative 
to the Grant.  
 
RESOLVED THIS 19TH DAY OF APRIL, 2023. 
 

FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ___________________________________  
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 
 
I, Sean Halbom, duly qualified Secretary of the Board of 
Supervisors of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 
Pennsylvania, hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct 
copy of a Resolution duly adopted by a majority vote of the Board 
of Supervisors at a regular meeting held the 19th day of April, 



2  
  

2023, and said Resolution has been recorded in the minutes of the 
Board of Supervisors and remains in effect as of this date. 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix by hand and attach the seal of 
the Township of Worcester this 19th day of April, 2023. 
 
_______________________________ 



Resolution 2023-12 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-12 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE GRANT APPLICATION FOR FISHER ROAD OPEN 
SPACE MASTER PLAN 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township (the 
“Applicant") desires to undertake the project known as the Fisher 
Road Open Space Master Plan, (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant desires to receive from the Department of 
Conservation and Natural Resources (the “Department”) a grant 
for the purpose of carrying out the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application for the grant (the “Grant Application”) 
includes a document entitled “Terms and Conditions of Grant”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant understands that the contents of the 
document entitled "Terms and Conditions of Grant," including 
appendices referred to therein, will become the terms and 
conditions of a Grant Agreement between the Applicant and the 
Department if the Applicant is awarded a grant. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
1. The Applicant hereby authorizes Richard DeLello, Chair, Board 

of Supervisors, Worcester Township, with the email address of 
rdelello@worcestertwp.com, to electronically sign the Grant 
Application for the Project and all required associated 
documents. 

 
2. If the Applicant is awarded a grant for the Project, the Grant 

Application Electronic Authorization, signed by the above 
Official, will become the Applicant / grantee’s executed 
signature page for the Grant Agreement, and the Applicant / 
grantee will be bound by the Grant Agreement. 
 

3. Any amendment to the Grant Agreement may be signed on behalf 
of the Applicant by the Chair of the Board of Supervisors of 



Resolution 2023-12 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Worcester Township and the Applicant / grantee will be bound 
by any such amendment. 
 

 
 
RESOLVED THIS 19TH DAY OF APRIL, 2023. 

 
FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ____________________________ 
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 
 
 
I, Sean Halbom, duly qualified Secretary of 
the Board of Supervisors of Worcester 
Township, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, 
hereby certify that the forgoing is a true 
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted 
by a majority vote of the Board of 
Supervisors at a regular meeting held the 
19th day of April, 2023, and said Resolution 
has been recorded in the minutes of the Board 
of Supervisors and remains in effect as of 
this date. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix by hand and 
attach the seal of the Township of Worcester 
this 19th day of April, 2023. 
 
_______________________________ 
 


















































	a. 3-15-23 - Bus. Meeting Minutes_
	b. financial
	c.Permits - March 2023
	d. 04 04 2023 - JJN Engineers Report
	d. Public Works Project Status JJN
	e.Public Works Department Report March 2023
	f. MARCH23_WVFD_TWP_REPORT
	g.Resolution 2023-10 - Master Casting Agreement
	h.Resolution 2023-11 - MTF grant - VFCIP
	i.Resolution 2023-12 C2P2 Grant Resolution - DR
	j.04 07 2023 - Nike Park Recommendation for Award
	k.ROW

